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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

 

Lauren Price on behalf of herself and all 

others similarly situated, 

 

Plaintiff, 

v.  

 

Facebook, Inc., and Cambridge Analytica,  

 
Defendants. 

CASE NO.  

 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT  

 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

Plaintiff Lauren Price, on behalf of herself and all others similarly situated, alleges 

the following against Defendants Facebook, Inc. (“Facebook”) and Cambridge Analytica 
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(“CA”) (“Defendants”), based on personal knowledge as to Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s own acts 

and on information and belief as to all other matters based upon, inter alia, the investigation 

conducted by and through Plaintiff’s undersigned counsel: 

SUMMARY OF THE CASE 

1. Facebook operates a social networking website that allows people to 

communicate with their family, friends, and coworkers. Facebook develops technologies that 

facilitate the sharing of information, photographs, website links, and videos. Facebook users 

have the ability to share and restrict information based on their own specific criteria. By the 

end of 2017, Facebook had more than 2.2 billion active users.  The company’s mission is “to 

give people the power to build community and bring the world closer together. People use 

Facebook to stay connected with friends and family, to discover what’s going on in the 

world, and to share and express what matters to them.”   

2. Cambridge Analytica is a privately held company that combines data mining 

and data analysis with strategic communication for use in the electoral process. 

3. As part of the sign up process and while interacting with the network, 

Facebook users create profiles containing significant amounts of personal information, 

including their name, birthdate, hometown, address, location, interests, relationships, email 

address, photos, and videos, amongst others, referred to herein as Personal Information.    

4. This case involves the absolute disregard with which Defendants have chosen 

to treat Plaintiff’s Personal Information.  While this information was supposed to be 

protected, and used for only expressly disclosed and limited purposes, CA, without 

authorization, or by exceeding whatever limited authorization it, or its agents, had, 

improperly collected the Personal Information of nearly 50 million Facebook users.  

Facebook, for its part, knew this improper data aggregation was occurring and failed to stop 

it, or actively avoided discovering such knowledge in order to profess supposed ignorance. 

Plaintiff brings this suit to protect her privacy interests and those of the class.  
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

5. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to the Class Action 

Fairness Act (“CAFA”), 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d), because the aggregate amount in controversy 

exceeds $5,000,000, exclusive of interests and costs, there are more than 100 class members, 

and at least one class member is a citizen of a state different from Defendants and is a citizen 

of a foreign state. The Court also has supplemental jurisdiction over the state law claims 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367.  

6. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(c) because Defendants are 

corporations that do business in and are subject to personal jurisdiction in this District. Venue 

is also proper because a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claims in 

this action occurred in or emanated from this District, including the decisions made by 

Facebook to permit the information aggregation and CA’s collection of the information..  

PARTIES 

A. Class Representatives  

7.  Plaintiff Lauren Price is a citizen and resident of Maryland.  Plaintiff has held 

a Facebook account for approximately eight years. Plaintiff recalls that during the 2016 

Presidential election, she was frequently targeted with political ads while using Facebook.  

B. Defendants 

8. Facebook is incorporated in Delaware, and the Company’s principal executive 

offices are located at 1601 Willow Road, Menlo Park, California 94025. Facebook’s 

securities trade on the NASDAQ under the ticker symbol “FB.”   

9. Cambridge Analytica (“CA”) is a privately held company that combines data 

mining and data analysis with strategic communication for the electoral process. CA was 

created in 2013 by its British parent company SCL Group, Limited, and Robert Mercer, 

reported to be a “secretive hedge fund billionaire” participating in American politics. The 

Mercer family, known for its far-right conservative positions, reportedly invested millions of 

dollars in the company, and Rebekah Mercer (Robert Mercer’s daughter) sits on CA’s Board 
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of Directors.1 CA co-founder Christopher Wylie stated the company’s mission as: “[they] 

want to fight a culture war in America.”2  The CA website discloses that it has offices in 

Washington, DC and in New York3, but upon information and belief, it is neither registered 

to do business nor is licensed to conduct business in either jurisdiction. In 2015, CA became 

known as the data analysis company retained by the Ted Cruz presidential primary campaign, 

but after that campaign faltered in 2016, CA worked for the Donald Trump presidential 

campaign.4  An interview with CA’s CEO (Alexander Nix) confirms that the Trump 

campaign paid for CA’s services and that then-candidate Trump was “a good businessman.”5.  

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

10. On March 17, 2018, both the New York Times and The Guardian reported on 

CA’s use of Personal Information obtained from Facebook without permission, and under the 

pretext of claiming to be collecting and using it for academic purposes. The reports revealed 

that Cambridge Analytica, a firm brought on by the Trump campaign to target voters online, 

used the data of 50 million people obtained from Facebook without proper disclosures or 

permission. The report further stated, in part 

 

[T]he firm harvested private information from the 

Facebook profiles of more than 50 million users without 

their permission, according to former Cambridge 

employees, associates and documents, making it one of the 

largest data leaks in the social network’s history. The breach 

allowed the company to exploit the private social media 

activity of a huge swath of the American electorate, 

developing techniques that underpinned its work on 

President Trump’s campaign in 2016.  

***  

But the full scale of the data leak involving Americans 

has not been previously disclosed — and Facebook, until 

now, has not acknowledged it. Interviews with a half-dozen 

former employees and contractors, and a review of the firm’s 

                                                 
1 https://www.theguardian.com/news/2018/mar/17/data-war-whistleblower-christopher-wylie-faceook-nix-

bannon-trump 
2 https://www.nytimes.com/2018/03/17/us/politics/cambridge-analytica-trump-campaign.html 
3 https://cambridgeanalytica.org/ 
4 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Cambridge_Analytica 
5 https://www.forbes.com/sites/parmyolson/2018/03/20/face-to-face-with-cambridge-analytica-alexander-nix-

facebook-trump/#674008da535f 
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emails and documents, have revealed that Cambridge not 

only relied on the private Facebook data but still possesses 

most or all of the trove.  

 

(Emphases added.) 

11. CA did this by posting a survey app on Facebook called “MyDigitalLife,” in 

2014.  Billed as a “research app used by psychologists” and designed by a Cambridge 

academic, it promised to help users better understand their own personalities.  

12. Approximately 270,000 people downloaded MyDigitalLife, giving Cambridge 

Analytica a backdoor to their data and that of all their friends, more than 50 million other 

people who, according to Facebook, “had their privacy settings set to allow it.”6 

13. A former contractor with Cambridge Analytica, Christopher Wylie, revealed 

how the data mining worked: “With their profiles, likes, even private messages, [Cambridge 

Analytica] could build a personality profile on each person and know how best to target them 

with messages.”7  

14. Mr. Wylie stated that he had receipts, invoices, emails, legal letters and 

records that “showed how, between June and August 2014, the profiles of more than 50 

million Facebook users had been harvested.”8  These profiles “contained enough information, 

including places of residence, that [CA] could match users to other records and build 

psychographic profiles.”9  

15. In effect, CA was mounting a campaign of psychological warfare on millions 

of hapless victims, without their knowledge or consent. Indeed, of the 50 million Facebook 

users victimized by this scheme, “only about 270,000 users – those who had participated in 

the [mydigitallife] survey”10 – had even consented to having their data harvested, and then 

                                                 
6 https://www.forbes.com/sites/parmyolson/2018/03/20/face-to-face-with-cambridge-analytica-alexander-nix-

facebook-trump/#674008da535f 
7 https://www.theguardian.com/news/2018/mar/17/data-war-whistleblower-christopher-wylie-
faceook-nix-bannon-trump  
8 https://www.theguardian.com/news/2018/mar/17/data-war-whistleblower-christopher-wylie-faceook-nix-

bannon-trump 
 
9 https://www.nytimes.com/2018/03/17/us/politics/cambridge-analytica-trump-campaign.html 
10 Id.  
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only for research purposes, and without any authorization to having their data used to 

promote CA’s (and the Mercer’s), political goal to engage in cultural warfare.  Indeed, Mr. 

Wylie stated that “…the Facebook data…was ‘the saving grace’ that let his team deliver the 

models it had promised the Mercers.”11 

16. Yet, Facebook itself lies within the penumbra of blame.  

17. Sandy Parakilas, a “former Facebook platforms operations manager for 

policing data breaches by third party software developers between 2011 and 2012,” stated 

that as many as hundreds of millions of Facebook users are likely to have had their private 

information harvested by companies that exploited the same terms as the firm that collected 

data and passed it on to Cambridge Analytica.”12   

18. Parakilas stated that he warned senior executives at the company that its lax 

approach to data protection risked a major breach:  “[Parakila’s] concerns were that all of the 

data that left Facebook servers to developers could not be monitored by Facebook, so 

[Facebook] had no idea what developers were doing with the data” and that the company did 

not use enforcement mechanisms, including audits of external developers, to ensure data was 

not being misused.13  

19. Incredibly, Facebook’s “trust model” was rife with security vulnerabilities and 

a near total abnegation of its responsibility to audit its own rules limiting use of Facebook 

data by third parties. Or, in Parakilas’ own words, “[Facebook] felt that it was better not to 

know.”14  

20. That company philosophy apparently has carried on since Mr. Parakila’s 

departure from Facebook, as amply evidenced by the hijacking of more than 50 million of the 

company’s profiles by the Cambridge Analytics Defendant. Facebook’s stated position—that 

“Protecting people’s information is at the heart of everything we do”15—is a far cry from the 

                                                 
11 Id. 
12 https://www.theguardian.com/news/2018/mar/20/facebook-data-cambridge-analytica-sandy-parakilas 
13 Id. 
14 Id. 
15 https://www.nytimes.com/2018/03/17/us/politics/cambridge-analytica-trump-campaign.html  
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truth: In fact, Facebook had known about this security breach for two years, but did little or 

nothing to protect its users.16 

21. On March 19, 2018,  Bloomberg  published an article entitled “FTC Probing 

Facebook For Use of Personal Data, Source Says,” disclosing that the U.S. Federal Trade 

Commission (“FTC”) is “probing whether Facebook violated terms of a 2011 consent decree 

of its handling of user data that was transferred to Cambridge Analytica without [user] 

knowledge.” Under the 2011 settlement with the FTC, Facebook “agreed to get user consent 

for certain changes to privacy settings as  part of a settlement of federal chargers that is 

deceived consumers and forced them to share more  Personal Information than they 

intended.” The article further stated that “if the FTC finds Facebook violated terms of the 

consent decree, it has the power to fine the company more than $40,000 a day per violation.” 

22. At all relevant times, Facebook has maintained a Data Use Policy on its 

website. At all relevant times, the Data Use Policy advised Facebook users, in part: 

 

Granting us permission to use your information not only allows us to provide 

Facebook as it exists today, but it also allows us to provide you with innovative 

features and services we develop in the future that use the information we receive 

about you in new ways. While you are allowing us to use the information we receive 

about you, you always own all of your information. Your trust is important to us, 

which is why we don't share information we receive about you with others unless 

we have: 

 received your permission 

 given you notice, such as by telling you about it in this policy; or  

 removed your name and any other personally identifying information from it.  

(Emphases added) (https://www.facebook.com/full_data_use_policy). 

23. The incident has violated the privacy of millions of people in every state. The 

privacy and personal, sensitive information of 50 million people is now at high risk for 

identity theft and compromise, and will continue to be at risk as a direct result of the acts of 

Defendants.  

                                                 
16

https://www.nytimes.com/2018/03/17/us/politics/cambridge-analytica-trump-campaign.html; 
https://www.theguardian.com/news/2018/mar/20/facebook-data-cambridge-analytica-sandy-parakilas 
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.  

 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

24. Pursuant to Rule 23(b)(2), (b)(3) and (c)(4) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, brings this 

lawsuit on behalf of themselves and as a class action on behalf of the following class: 

All persons who registered for Facebook accounts in the United 

States and whose Personal Information was obtained from 

Facebook by Cambridge Analytica without authorization or in 

excess of authorization.  

25. Excluded from the Class are Defendants and any entities in which any 

Defendant or their subsidiaries or affiliates have a controlling interest, and Defendants’ 

officers, agents, and employees.  Also excluded from the Class are the judge assigned to this 

action, and any member of the judge’s immediate family. 

26. Numerosity: The members of each Class are so numerous that joinder of all 

members of any Class would be impracticable. Plaintiff reasonably believes that Class 

members number fifty (50) million people or more in the aggregate and well over 1,000 in 

the smallest of the classes. The names and addresses of Class members are identifiable 

through documents maintained by Defendants. 

27. Commonality and Predominance: This action involves common questions 

of law or fact, which predominate over any questions affecting individual Class members, 

including: 

i. Whether Facebook represented that it would safeguard Plaintiff’s and 

Class members’ Personal Information and not disclose it without consent;  

ii. Whether CA improperly obtained Plaintiff’s and Class members’ 

Personal Information without authorization or in excess of any 

authorization;  
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 9  
 

Class Action Complaint 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

iii. Whether Facebook was aware of CA’s improper collection of Plaintiff’s 

and Class members’ Personal Information;  

iv. Whether Defendants owed a legal duty to Plaintiff and the Class to 

exercise due care in collecting, storing, safeguarding, and/or obtaining 

their Personal Information; 

v. Whether Defendants breached a legal duty to Plaintiff and the Class to 

exercise due care in collecting, storing, safeguarding, and/or obtaining 

their Personal Information; 

vi. Whether Class members’ Personal Information was obtained by CA;   

vii. Whether Defendants’ conduct violated Cal. Civ. Code § 1750, et seq.; 

viii. Whether Defendants’ conduct was an unlawful or unfair business practice 

under Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200, et seq.; 

ix. Whether Defendants’ conduct violated § 5 of the Federal Trade 

Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45, et seq., 

x. Whether Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to equitable relief, including, 

but not limited to, injunctive relief and restitution; and 

xi. Whether Plaintiff and the other Class members are entitled to actual, 

statutory, or other forms of damages, and other monetary relief. 

28. Defendants engaged in a common course of conduct giving rise to the legal 

rights sought to be enforced by Plaintiff individually and on behalf of the members of the 

class. Similar or identical statutory and common law violations, business practices, and 

injuries are involved. Individual questions, if any, pale by comparison, in both quantity and 

quality, to the numerous common questions that dominate this action. 

29. Typicality: Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the other members of 

their respective classes because, among other things, Plaintiff and the other class members 

were injured through the substantially uniform misconduct by Defendants.  Plaintiff is 

advancing the same claims and legal theories on behalf of herself and all other Class 

members, and there are no defenses that are unique to Plaintiff.  The claims of Plaintiff and 
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those of other Class members arise from the same operative facts and are based on the same 

legal theories. 

30. Adequacy of Representation: Plaintiff is an adequate representative of the 

class because her interests do not conflict with the interests of the other Class members she 

seeks to represent; she has retained counsel competent and experienced in complex class 

action litigation and Plaintiff will prosecute this action vigorously.  The Class members’ 

interests will be fairly and adequately protected by Plaintiff and her counsel. 

31. Superiority: A class action is superior to any other available means for the 

fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy, and no unusual difficulties are likely to be 

encountered in the management of this matter as a class action.  The damages, harm, or other 

financial detriment suffered individually by Plaintiff and the other members of their 

respective classes are relatively small compared to the burden and expense that would be 

required to litigate their claims on an individual basis against Defendants, making it 

impracticable for Class members to individually seek redress for Defendants’ wrongful 

conduct.  Even if Class members could afford individual litigation, the court system could 

not. Individualized litigation would create a potential for inconsistent or contradictory 

judgments, and increase the delay and expense to all parties and the court system. By 

contrast, the class action device presents far fewer management difficulties and provides the 

benefits of single adjudication, economies of scale, and comprehensive supervision by a 

single court. 

32. Further, Defendants have acted or refused to act on grounds generally 

applicable to the Class and, accordingly, final injunctive or corresponding declaratory relief 

with regard to the members of the Class as a whole is appropriate under Rule 23(b)(2) of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

33. Likewise, particular issues under Rule 23(c)(4) are appropriate for 

certification because such claims present only particular, common issues, the resolution of 

which would advance the disposition of this matter and the parties’ interests therein.  Such 

particular issues include, but are not limited to: 
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a. Whether Class members’ Personal Information was obtained by CA;  

b. Whether (and when) Facebook knew about the improper collection of 

Personal Information;  

c. Whether Defendants’ conduct was an unlawful or unfair business practice 

under Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200, et seq.; 

d. Whether Facebook’s representations that they would secure and not disclose 

without consent the Personal Information of Plaintiff and members of the 

classes were facts that reasonable persons could be expected to rely upon 

when deciding whether to use Facebook’s services;  

e. Whether Facebook misrepresented the safety of its many systems and 

services, specifically the security thereof, and their ability to safely store 

Plaintiff’s and Class members’ Personal Information;  

f. Whether Facebook failed to comply with its own policies and applicable laws, 

regulations, and industry standards relating to data security;  

g. Whether Defendants’ acts, omissions, misrepresentations, and practices were 

and are likely to deceive consumers;  

h. Whether Defendants’ conduct violated Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 22575, et 

seq.; 

i. Whether Defendants failed to adhere to their posted privacy policy concerning 

the care they would take to safeguard ’ and Class members’ Personal 

Information in violation of California Business and Professions Code § 22576;  

j. Whether Defendants negligently and materially failed to adhere to their posted 

privacy policy with respect to the extent of their disclosure of users’ data, in 

violation of California Business and Professions Code § 22576;  

CLAIMS ALLEGED ON BEHALF OF ALL CLASSES 

First Claim for Relief 

Violation of California’s Unfair Competition Law (“UCL”) – Unlawful Business 

Practice 

Case 5:18-cv-01732   Document 1   Filed 03/20/18   Page 11 of 15



 
 

 12  
 

Class Action Complaint 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200, et seq.) 

34. Plaintiff repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference the allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 333 as though fully stated herein. 

35. By reason of the conduct alleged herein, Defendants engaged in unlawful 

practices within the meaning of the UCL. The conduct alleged herein is a “business practice” 

within the meaning of the UCL. 

36. Facebook represented that it would not disclosure user’s Personal Information 

without consent and/or notice.  It also required application developers, like CA, to obtain and 

utilize users’ Personal Information in specified, limited ways.    

37. Defendants failed to abide by these representations.  Facebook did not prevent 

improper disclosure of Plaintiff’s and the Class’ Personal Information.   

38. CA obtained Plaintiff’s and the Class’ Personal Information either wholly 

without authorization or in excess of any authorization it—or its agents—may have obtained.  

39. Defendants’ acts, omissions, and misrepresentations as alleged herein were 

unlawful and in violation of, inter alia, Cal. Civ. Code § 1798.81.5(b), Section 5(a) of the 

Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), and Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 22576 (as a 

result of Facebook failing to comply with its own posted policies).  

40. Plaintiff and the Class members suffered injury in fact and lost money or 

property as the result of Defendants’ unlawful business practices. In particular, Plaintiff and 

Class members Personal Information was taken and is in the hands of those who will use it 

for their own advantage, or is being sold for value, making it clear that the information is of 

tangible value.  

41. As a result of Defendants’ unlawful business practices, Plaintiff and the class 

are entitled to restitution, disgorgement of wrongfully obtained profits and injunctive relief.  
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Second Claim for Relief 

Violation of California’s Unfair Competition Law (“UCL”) – Unfair Business Practice 

(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200, et seq.) 

42. Plaintiff repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference the allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 3 as though fully stated herein. 

43. By reason of the conduct alleged herein, Defendants engaged in unfair 

“business practices” within the meaning of the UCL.  

44. Facebook stored the Personal Information of Plaintiff and members of the 

Class in its electronic and consumer information databases. Defendants represented to 

Plaintiff and members of the classes that their Personal Information would remain private. 

Defendants engaged in unfair acts and business practices by representing that they would not 

disclose this Personal Information without authorization, and/or by obtaining that Personal 

Information without authorization.  

45. Plaintiff and the Class members suffered injury in fact and lost money or 

property as the result of Defendants’ unfair business practices. In particular, Plaintiff and 

Class members Personal Information was taken and is in the hands of those who will use it 

for their own advantage, or is being sold for value, making it clear that the hacked 

information is of tangible value. 

46. As a result of Defendants’ unfair business practices, violations of the UCL, 

Plaintiff and the Class are entitled to restitution, disgorgement of wrongfully obtained profits 

and injunctive relief.  

Third Claim for Relief 

Negligence 

47. Plaintiff repeats, realleges, and incorporates by reference the allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 3 as though fully stated herein.  

48. Defendants owed a duty to Plaintiff and the Class to exercise reasonable care 

in obtaining and protecting their Personal Information, and keeping it from being 

compromised, lost, stolen, misused, and or/disclosed to unauthorized parties.  
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49. Defendants knew that the Personal Information of Plaintiff and the Class was 

personal and sensitive information that is valuable.  

50. By being entrusted by Plaintiff and the Class to safeguard their Personal 

Information, Facebook had a special relationship with Plaintiff and the Class. Plaintiff and 

the Class signed up for Facebook’s services and agreed to provide their Personal Information 

with the understanding that Facebook would take appropriate measures to protect it, and 

would inform Plaintiff and the Class of any breaches or other security concerns that might 

call for action by Plaintiff and the Class. But, Facebook did not. Facebook failed to prevent 

CA’s improper obtaining of Plaintiff’s and the Class’ Personal Information.  

51. CA had a duty to refrain from obtaining Plaintiff’s and the Class’ Personal 

Information in without their consent or authorization.  

52. Defendants breached their duties by failing to adopt, implement, and maintain 

adequate security measures to safeguard the Personal Information, or by obtaining that 

Personal Information without authorization.   

53. Facebook also breached their duty to timely disclose that Plaintiff’s and the 

other class members’ Personal Information had been, or was reasonably believed to have 

been, improperly obtained. 

54. But for Defendants’ wrongful and negligent breach of their duties owed to 

Plaintiff and the Class, their Personal Information would not have been improperly obtained. 

Defendants’ negligence was a direct and legal cause of the theft of the Personal Information 

of Plaintiff and the Class and all resulting damages. 

55. The injury and harm suffered by Plaintiff and the Class members was the 

reasonably foreseeable result of Defendants’ failure to exercise reasonable care in 

safeguarding and protecting Plaintiff’s and the other class members’ Personal Information.  
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of the other Class members, 

respectfully requests that this Court enter an Order: 

(a) Certifying the United States Class and appointing Plaintiff as Class 

Representative;  

(b) Finding that Defendants’ conduct was negligent, deceptive, unfair, and 

unlawful as alleged herein; 

(c) Enjoining Defendants from engaging in further negligent, deceptive, unfair, 

and unlawful business practices alleged herein; 

(d) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class members nominal, actual, compensatory, and 

consequential damages; 

(e) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class members statutory damages and penalties, as 

allowed by law; 

(f) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class members restitution and disgorgement; 

(g) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class members pre-judgment and post-judgment 

interest; 

(h) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class members reasonable attorneys’ fees costs 

and expenses, and; 

(i) Granting such other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury of all claims in this First Amended Consolidated 

Amended Class Action Complaint so triable. 

   

Dated: March 20, 2018  
       /s/ Joshua H. Watson 
       Joshua H. Watson 

       Attorney for Plaintiffs 
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SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) Facebook, Inc., 1601 Willow Road, Menlo Park CA 94025
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Date:
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Case 5:18-cv-01732   Document 1-1   Filed 03/20/18   Page 1 of 1



JS 44   (Rev. 06/17)                                     CIVIL COVER SHEET
The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law,  except as
provided by local rules of court.  This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS

(b)   County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff County of Residence of First Listed Defendant
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

(c)   Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)  Attorneys (If Known)

II.  BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X” in One Box Only) III.  CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only)                                                     and One Box for Defendant)

1   U.S. Government 3  Federal Question                                                    PTF    DEF                                                       PTF    DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State 1  1 Incorporated or Principal Place 4 4

    of Business In This State

2   U.S. Government 4  Diversity Citizen of Another State 2  2 Incorporated and Principal Place 5 5
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III) of Business In Another State

Citizen or Subject of a 3  3 Foreign Nation 6 6
    Foreign Country

IV.  NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X” in One Box Only) Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.
CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES

110 Insurance  PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY 625 Drug Related Seizure 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 375 False Claims Act
120 Marine 310 Airplane 365 Personal Injury  -   of Property 21 USC 881 423 Withdrawal 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
130 Miller Act 315 Airplane Product   Product Liability 690 Other   28 USC 157   3729(a))
140 Negotiable Instrument   Liability 367 Health Care/ 400 State Reapportionment
150 Recovery of Overpayment 320 Assault, Libel &  Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGHTS 410 Antitrust

 & Enforcement of Judgment   Slander  Personal Injury 820 Copyrights 430 Banks and Banking
151 Medicare Act 330 Federal Employers’  Product Liability 830 Patent 450 Commerce
152 Recovery of Defaulted   Liability 368 Asbestos Personal 835 Patent - Abbreviated 460 Deportation

 Student Loans 340 Marine   Injury Product        New Drug Application 470 Racketeer Influenced and
 (Excludes Veterans) 345 Marine Product   Liability 840 Trademark  Corrupt Organizations

153 Recovery of Overpayment   Liability  PERSONAL PROPERTY LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY 480 Consumer Credit
 of Veteran’s Benefits 350 Motor Vehicle 370 Other Fraud 710 Fair Labor Standards 861 HIA (1395ff) 490 Cable/Sat TV

160 Stockholders’ Suits 355 Motor Vehicle 371 Truth in Lending   Act 862 Black Lung (923) 850 Securities/Commodities/
190 Other Contract  Product Liability 380 Other Personal 720 Labor/Management 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g))   Exchange
195 Contract Product Liability 360 Other Personal  Property Damage   Relations 864 SSID Title XVI 890 Other Statutory Actions
196 Franchise  Injury 385 Property Damage 740 Railway Labor Act 865 RSI (405(g)) 891 Agricultural Acts

362 Personal Injury -  Product Liability 751 Family and Medical 893 Environmental Matters
 Medical Malpractice   Leave Act 895 Freedom of Information

 REAL PROPERTY    CIVIL RIGHTS   PRISONER PETITIONS 790 Other Labor Litigation FEDERAL TAX SUITS   Act
210 Land Condemnation 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: 791 Employee Retirement 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff 896 Arbitration
220 Foreclosure 441 Voting 463 Alien Detainee  Income Security Act   or Defendant) 899 Administrative Procedure
230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 442 Employment 510 Motions to Vacate 871 IRS—Third Party  Act/Review or Appeal of
240 Torts to Land 443 Housing/  Sentence   26 USC 7609  Agency Decision
245 Tort Product Liability  Accommodations 530 General 950 Constitutionality of
290 All Other Real Property 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION  State Statutes

 Employment Other: 462 Naturalization Application
446 Amer. w/Disabilities - 540 Mandamus & Other 465 Other Immigration

 Other 550 Civil Rights        Actions
448 Education 555 Prison Condition

560 Civil Detainee -
 Conditions of
 Confinement

V.  ORIGIN (Place an “X” in One Box Only)
1 Original

Proceeding
2 Removed from

State Court
 3 Remanded from

Appellate Court
4 Reinstated or

Reopened
 5 Transferred from

Another District
(specify)

 6 Multidistrict
Litigation -
Transfer

8  Multidistrict
    Litigation -
   Direct File

VI.  CAUSE OF ACTION
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

Brief description of cause:

VII.  REQUESTED IN
         COMPLAINT:

CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION
UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P.

DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
JURY DEMAND: Yes No

VIII.  RELATED CASE(S)
          IF ANY (See instructions):

JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER
DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG. JUDGE

Lauren Price on behalf of herself and all others similarly situated

Maryland

Clayeo C. Arnold, Joshua H. Watson
CLAYEO C. ARNOLD, APC
865 Howe Ave, Sacramento, CA 95825, 916-777-7777

Facebook, Inc., and Cambridge Analytica

San Mateo, California

28 U.S.C. § 1332

Unlawful business practices concerning personal data use and distribution

500,000,000.00

03/20/2018 /s/ Joshua H. Watson

Case 5:18-cv-01732   Document 1-2   Filed 03/20/18   Page 1 of 2



JS 44 Reverse  (Rev. 06/17)

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court.  This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet.  Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed.  The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

I.(a) Plaintiffs-Defendants.  Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant.  If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations.  If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and
then the official, giving both name and title.

   (b) County of Residence.  For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing.  In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing.  (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)

   (c) Attorneys.  Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record.  If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

II.  Jurisdiction.  The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings.  Place an "X"
in one of the boxes.  If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff.  (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348.  Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant.  (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question.  (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States.  In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship.  (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states.  When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

III.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties.  This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above.  Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV. Nature of Suit.  Place an "X" in the appropriate box.  If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code
that is most applicable.  Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

V. Origin.  Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings.  (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court.  (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court.  (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action.  Use the date of remand as the filing
date.
Reinstated or Reopened.  (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court.  Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District.  (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a).  Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation – Transfer.  (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C.
Section 1407.
Multidistrict Litigation – Direct File.  (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7.  Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to
changes in statue.

VI. Cause of Action.  Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity.  Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553  Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII. Requested in Complaint.  Class Action.  Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand.  In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand.  Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases.  This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any.  If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature.  Date and sign the civil cover sheet.

Case 5:18-cv-01732   Document 1-2   Filed 03/20/18   Page 2 of 2


